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Eistorical Introduction

The circumstences comnected with the arrest of Major Andrd,
his trial and executlion es & spy ere familiar - at least in gen-
eral] = to students and reedsrs of Americen history. The lunde
merk history of this most eriticul episode of the Revelution is
not 8¢ wel) known even to scholars.

For the purposes of the Historlio frerican Bulldings Burvey,

8 single magazine article, written by Jonn Austin Stevens and pube

lished by Mrs. Martin J. Lemb in her Magazine of American History,

Vol. I1I, No. 12 (Dec.,1879), pp. 743=746, can fittingly serve as
the best suthority obtainable in regerd to the André prison~hcuse
at Teppan, even after & lupse of more than 50 yeara. Mrs. leumb,
e friend of the present writer In his youth, was succeeded in the
editorial chair of that famous magazine, first, by Gen. James Grasnt
Tileon, end eventuslly by Mr. William Abbatt, a writer, lecturer
snd publisher of reprints off scsrce Americana. The undersigned
collector and historisn has in his keeping ¥r. Abbait's lantern-
slides, made from rare photographs which he guthered through seve
erel years of research, and which show the homes, taverns, and
other places where André stopped both before end after his capture,
from the time he left New York on his venturesome undertaking until
his executlon 8% Tappan. These negatives may be consulted,with
¥r. Abbattts consent, by persons intorested.

Mre. Steven's artic;e is entitled "The Seventy~Six Stone Housze

st Tappen®. It was published in anticipation of the centemmial,
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in the following year, of tﬁat épde tragedy of the War. These
are the fucts recited by ¥r. Stevens:

"The house to which the prisoner was brought by ¥ajor Talle
maedge, on the eveniung of Thursdey, the 28th of Sepbember, 1780, in
which he was confined until the morning of Tuesday, the 2Znd of Cot-
¢her, and from which he wes led to the hill upor which he suffered,
is st411 etending in the highway.which runs through the quaint wii-
lage of Tappan.

"There iz nothing in the history of this qulet, sscluded spot
to distinguish 1t from innumerable other of the 0ld Dutoh settlements,
beyond this dramatic inoident ¢f the Revolution. At the time of
the discovery [of America}, the wigwams of the Indian tribe of' the
Tappens spresd over the country, from the Hackensack river to the
Highlends, from the Hudson to the western hills. vesceeveess The
tribe haz long since diseppeared, but the neme is preserved ir the
014 village and the now famous Tappen See [thet wide stretoh of
water in the Hudson River extending from Teppen rorthward to Stony
Point].

"This village was curing the Revoivtion indiseriminately lmown
85 Tappan or (rangetown, and is set down by both nemes on the map
made in 17729 by Robert Erskine, Geographer to the Continenteal Army,
[reproduced in the same issue of the magazine opposlite p. 750].
Crangetown, however, was rot organized until 1738, It 1s about
three miles from the Hudson, from which it is separated by the high
ground which compietes, beyond a deep gulley, the imp;gnable natural
defence of the Falisade renge; through this gap runs the road which

leads to the western terminus of Dobhs'® Ferry, where Cepleain Corbet
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kept a tavern in the days of the Revolution. Here is now the smell

village of Rocklend or Palisades, which is locelly known as Sneeden's
lending. The road from Tappsn village to the Hudson follows the &in-
uvosities of the ground, and is about oue and one~half miles iong.'

"Worth of the highland, and at its foot, rums the Sparkill, which,
wildening at its mouth, becomes the Slost, or diteh, and pours dts
walers into the Hudson. At the Sloat is now the thriving village
of Flermont, the lete terminus of the Frie Railrcad. The distance
from Dobbet! Ferry to the Sleat is sbout & mile.

"Tha lot on which the Seventy-Six House standa, there is strong
evidenoe to show, mede & part of the Van Voorst shars of the originel
patent which was conveyed to Cornelius Meyers., It ie situated on
the west side of the highwey, and is sixty~jhree feet front by onas
hundred and twenty feet daep. In 1763 it wes purchased of Yeyers by
Cagperus Mable, whose name way be seen on Erskine's map,of 1779 es
owner of other property in the neighborhood.

"#hen the houes was erected is not recorded [bresumably about
1756J.  During the Revolution it was known as the Mable Tavern, and
frem that period until quite recently it hes been used as & place of
publie entertainment. From Mable it pessed to Frederiek Rlauvelt,
snd was by him sold in 1800 to FPhilip Dubey, after whose desth it
passed succsssively to the ownership of Henry Gesner, Henry Storms,
Thomas Wandle, leurence T, Sneeden snd Henry Ryerson, all of whom
kept it a3 e public house. In 1887 it wes purchesed st morigage
sale by Dr. Jemes T. Stephens; & resident of Tappan since 1846, in
whose possession it still [in 1879] remains.,

"Tn 1876 Dr. Stephens planted an elm tree in the resr of the
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building, in commemoration of the one hundreth anniversary of Amere

icen Independsnce.

"The village proper wans on & diminutive scale when Erskine made
his surveys. This conscientious topogrepher never neglected to mark
down every house or kamlet on his routes. The little cluster which
bears the name of Tappan conslsted of six houses and the church. The
01d Dutch Church, where the courtemmrtial trials were held, and in
which Andre was brought befoare the Beard of General O0fficers by Wesh-
ingtonts direction, was bullt in 1716. In 1788 it wes robuilt and
enlaerged; in 1835 derolished, and the present edifice erected. %
stood at the northeast end of the village, where the road bends

shorply to the northward, end from it led a lane, which ven westerly

‘over the hill, on the north of which a part of the Amerlcan army was

encanped. Remains of the army ovens were until lately visible there.
On the southesstern outskirte of the village still stends [in 1879}
the bailding where Weshington bed his headguarters. Of the other
houses designsted by Erskine, that of Ryerson is still standing [187¢].
"The Seventy-Six House is built of stone, with brick trimmings
on the doors end windows. A hallway, which divides the front equally,
leads to a room, which extends over the entire rear of the building.
This was originally s lean-to, with a partition wall, which was later
removed, when the whole space was thrown together and used ac & balle
room about a guarkter of a century ago [ubout 18507,  Its southern
front room was the public place of entertalument. In its rear stends
& bar of peouliar constructlon: & projection of wood, with & ecanopy,

supported by pests. The fireplace was orpamented by tiles, which
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Magazine of Americen History
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have been removed [1879). A few remain in the possession of Dr.
Ztephens, but the gresber part were carried awsy by wnscrupulous
visitors. The northern front room and the smalier chamber in the
lean=to were arranged for the confinement of Andrd. In the latter
is a windbw, from which tradition is thet André sew the raising of
the gcaflfold, a stetement which is entirely st variance with the
shock he received when he saw the gallows, and first knew the manner
of his desth. In this room, 1t is supposed, he slept. The lock
of the doorwhich opensd from the other resr chamber, is now, with
due suvthentication, the property of the Wew York Historieal Society.
In the front room Major André received Col, Hamilton, Major Telil-
madge, and other officera of the Ameriéan army .

"¥cdest as this building must always have been it neverthelese
was the egqual of any in the village, In the orders to Tallmadge,
Weshington perticularly instructed him, ;hile keeping close watceh
ot his prisoner, to trest him with all the lenity his situation ads

‘mitted of, and to see that he was comfortably lodged. The stone-
work of the buillding is in excellent preservation, but the wood-work,
within snd without, is much deosyed, and even what is left is with
diffieculity preserved from the rapecity of the relic hunter. The
worthy owner, after repeated efforts to turn it to some precticsl
use which would still leave it opern to surious visitors, hes found
it necessary tc close the building to save what remairs, It is hoped
thet it may become the property of the State or County. Certainly
there 18 no house in the land over which hsngs e more romantic and mele

encholy interest®.

Ur. Stevens' artlcle is mccompanied by a full-page wood-cut view
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of the prison-house, and a Pull-page portrait of Maior Andrd etched

by HO B. Hall.
lossing's obgervations in 1850 [nearly 85 yaaré ago], at the

time he published his Pictorial Field-Book of the Revolution, Vol.

I, pp. 76485, anticipated by nbout 30 years some of those made by
Mr. Stevens: %"The whole appearance:has been materielly changed,®
Lossing wrote. "The room wherein the unfortunate prisoner wasg
confined, and which was kept with cere in its original condition
more thsn half a century, hes been enlarged and improved for the

purposes of a ball room! I was there a few years ago, when the then

owner was committing & sacrilige, and he bonsted, with great satise
Paction, that he had received & 'whole dollar for the 0ld lock that
fastened up Major Andrewl? Sentiment does not obey the laws of
trade-- it seems to cheapen with a decrease of supply."

Its Present Appearance

The present owner, krs . Callignon, quite appropristely permits
its use a8 a restaurant, on account of its convenient situstion on
the Kingta Highwsy. The André room is open to the publie.

She says that the east or front wall fell out some years ago
bul was rebuilt, presumably as originally plemnned. This was in 1897.
The building is again in poor condition. A new roof is needed and much
general repeir.

The seecond, or attie, floor has recently been partitioned off to
maeke six or seven smell bhederooms.

The exterior walls are brown stone to the height of the eaves,
with elapboard sbove. Some of the windows and dcors have brick arches

st heods, brielk quoins at sides and stone sills.
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The shutters are hung on one side of the windows only, and hinged
in the middie to fold baek upcn themselves,

An 014 pho%cgraph of the house shows a porch at the front,.
Whether this was in the original construetion ig uneertsain, as the porch
floor covered two windows into the cellsr, which 1s under only a part
of the houss.

The chimneys are brick; the roof is coversd with shingles; the
walls and ceilings are plester; the sittingercom and prison room have
beamed ceilings.

The bar-rcom {shown in the little drawing mude by Stevens) still
has the old bar with its 43-inch round bird's-eye maple hend-rail.

{(Prom fleld-notee of Mr. Felix Bowen, Architect, ¥. Y. City,
made during the present sur‘vey.)

It 155111 a "house of entertainment.” It's historic interest

is stil]l maje the basis of trade. !
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